CORENet Phase 1 – Final RFP – Questions and Answers

Solicitation # HC1047-08-R-4002
April 18, 2008

*This document only includes questions received on or before April 16, 2008.  This is a working document and not all questions have been answered at this time.  This document will be updated twice each week until all timely questions have been answered.

1.
There was no “Synopsis” on the FBO site that would indicate if or when questions would be entertained and answered by the Government.  Is it the Government’s intent to answer any questions submitted on the Final RFP?   If the answer is yes, is there a cut-off date established as to when they can be asked and still be answered before the submission date?

That “Synopsis” or “Description” did not originally appear because of a problem with the new FBO site.  The description was later updated.  Yes, the Government will answer any questions submitted via e-mail to Nathan Wheeling at Nathan.Wheeling@disa.mil no later than 3:00PM EDT on 18 April, 2008.
2.
Page 84, Section M.3.4 Factor 4 – COST AND PRICE FACTOR:  Section B states, “The Government will evaluate the proposed rates for the labor categories and other direct costs (ODCs) in Section B of the solicitation for completeness and reasonableness.  Determine the reasonableness of the price per sample order task and the overall price on the basis of adequate price competition and by comparison with the IGCE.”  Seeing as there are no proposed labor categories in Section B and there are no sample tasks provided to the offerors, how will this evaluation be accomplished?

“Proposed rates” refer to the labor categories and rates proposed by the contractor.  There are no sample tasks provided, and that language will be removed from the RFP.  The second quoted sentence above will read “Determine the reasonableness of the overall price on the basis of adequate price competition and by comparison with the IGCE.”  
3.
On page 84, Section D states, “The Government will base the price evaluation for all proposals on the total Discounted Life Cycle Cost (DLCC) for each proposal.  Calculate the DLCC using the proposed rates for the labor categories and the mark-up and profit percentages for ODCs listed in Section B.  Contractor-generated labor categories will not be included as part of the DLCC evaluation….”  All of the labor categories we propose are contractor-generated, as none are provided by the Government.  How will the DLCC price evaluation be conducted if that is the case?
4.
Our company's 8(a) status expires on May 6, 2008.  Does this disqualify us from this opportunity, or does the fact that we are 8(a) at time of submittal leave us qualified?

Given the scenario above, your company would be eligible.  Please see DFARS Clause 252.219-7010 (Alt A), on Page 43 of the RFP, as well as Section M.1, on Page 72.  The Offeror must be an SBA certified 8(a) Program Participant at the time the proposal is submitted.  Currently, offers are due 5 May 2008 at 2:00 PM EDT.  
5.
Reference L.6.2.2-Should the Operating Level Agreements (OLAs) be included with the SLAs as an appendix to Volumes I, II, and IV?

Yes.

6.
Reference L.2.3 (3rd paragraph)-These instructions and the PWS template seem to contradict the guidance elsewhere regarding the placement of the SLAs in the proposal? In fact, the PWS Template still calls for a subsection per SMF (including the associated OLA and SLA). Likewise the PWS Template strongly implies a QAP per SMF. 

a.
Should we simply assume that the instructions in section L.2.3 supersede the PWS Template?

No – see Question # 6b for a detailed clarification.

b.
Is it a correct assumption that, given that the SLAs (and, perhaps, the OLAs) will be in a separate appendix, it is incumbent on the proposer to make clear the connection between a given SLA and the SMF(s) to which it applies? 

Section L.2.3, the PWS Template and the QAP Template require clarification, as follows:

· Section 3 of the PWS will consist of multiple sub-sections, each providing the required information for a discrete function, as defined by the Offeror.

· A function may be a specific SMF, or may address multiple SMFs or part of an SMF, at the Offeror’s discretion.  The intent is that all processes and tenants identified in the MOF SMFs for which the Offeror would have responsibility be addressed in one manner or the other in Section 3.
· Any SLAs or OLAs that will be applied to the responsibilities identified for that function will be referenced in that sub-section.
· The SLAs and OLAs will be contained in a separate appendix.

· There is a single Quality Assurance Plan, which will be included in Section 4 of the PWS and counts towards the PWS page limits.  However, Section 6 of the QAP (“REVIEW OF TASK WORK PROCESSES AND WORK PRODUCTS”) requires a separate sub-section for each SLA.  Therefore Section 6 will be treated separately from the QAP, as follows:
· It will not count towards any page limits,

· It will be included as a separate appendix, titled “QAP for Individual SLAs”.
The PWS and QAP templates, Section L 2.3 and Section L 6.2.2 will be amended to reflect the above.

7.
Reference L.2.3 (5th paragraph)-Is it the Government’s intent that the QAP and the QASP be placed in the PWS or are they to be placed in Volume II in the section titled Performance and Quality Management? 
It is the Government’s intent that the QAP and the QASP be placed in the PWS.  See also Question #6 regarding Section 6 of the QAP.
a.
Will the Government have a need to be able to extract intact either or both after award, for example as a reference during the contract? 

Yes.  The Government will have a need to be able to extract the QAP after award.  See also Question #6 regarding Section 6 of the QAP.

b.
Is it expected that the QASP will tie back to the individual SLAs (which are in an Appendix)?

No.  The QASP is intended to be a higher-level plan detailing how the government can most effectively ensure that the contractor is following the QAP.

c.
If so, how does the Government wish that connection to be identified?

N/A

d.
Is it the Government’s intent that the QAP should address the quality of the systems being managed (as implied in the 6th paragraph “the QAP must provide for the identification of non-performing equipment….”) or the quality of the performance of the contractor staff (especially in light of the fact that many routine operations of CORENet are performed by Government staff)?

It is the Government’s intent that the QAP should address the quality of the performance of the contractor staff.  This statement shall be amended to reflect this.

8.
Reference L.3.1-Does the reference to a “one page summary” mean a one page summary for each past performance citation or a one page overall summary of all citations?

Per Section L.3.0, “A 1-page introduction, or summary, of each effort in the Offeror’s format may be included prior to the proposal data contained in Volume III, Section 1.”

9.
Reference L.3.1-Does the reference to labor categories mean the labor categories of the referenced contracts or the labor categories that might be proposed for this response (per L.4.2)?

All elements under L.3.0 Volume III reference Offerors’ past performance.  This volume shall not include proposed labor categories.

10.
Reference L.4.1 and L.4.2.- In responding to these particular SMFs, is the proposer to assume the breakdown of duties described in Attachment J-8 (and the corresponding descriptions in the PWS) or are we to price these SMF’s as though they are to be performed in their entirety by the contractor?

The Offeror is to assume the breakdown of duties described in Attachment J-8 (and the corresponding descriptions in the PWS) and price the SMFs accordingly.
11.
Reference L.7-In which volume would the Government like the hard-copy and the softcopy (see L.6.3.8) of the slides placed? Is it the Government’s intent to provide the softcopy of the orals MS Powerpoint slides to the offeror at the time of the presentation for loading onto a computer provided by the offeror (or by the Government?)? 

The government will have the presentation loaded on a PC to ensure a prompt start at the scheduled time to the presentation.  However, the Offeror may still bring a softcopy and new handouts if it was necessary to change the presentation between proposal submission and the oral presentation.

12.
Reference L.1.2 and L.2.2-Given the need to state that the proposal is good for 270 days, should the same statement be included in the Cost/Price Proposal?

Yes.  This requirement will be added to L.4.
13.  References: Section L and M.  There is wording in sections L and M that states that the offeror’s proposal “must meet all mandatory solicitation requirements” (e.g. M.1 A.), and in other areas it states that the “all the objectives specified in the solicitation are mandatory” (e.g. L.1.1).

Question:  Is the Government using the words “mandatory requirements” and “mandatory objectives” interchangeably in this solicitation?  If not what are the mandatory solicitation requirements that must be met?

14.  References: M.3.4, Factor 4 paragraph D, and L.4.2, paragraph (2).

 “Contractor generated labor categories will not be included as part of the DLCC evaluation”.  And, “The Offeror shall provide labor rate costs for each labor category they propose”  

Question:  We were not able to find government supplied labor categories, qualifications, and descriptions.  Is it the government’s intent to provide them or is the contractor expected to generate labor categories, qualifications, and descriptions? If the offeror is to provide how will they be handled in the DLCC evaluation? 

15.  Reference:  Section L.4.1.  “The Offeror shall develop cost/price information for the following four Service Management Functions in the PWS: (1) Service Monitoring and Control, (2) Service Desk, (3) Release Management, and (4) Network Administration.  Pricing for the SMFs will be reviewed for completeness and reasonableness.  Cost/Price realism may be conducted on the SMF pricing.” 

Question: Are the four SMF’s listed in L.4.1 the sample task orders that Government will evaluate as stated in M.3.4 Factor 4, paragraph B. “reasonableness of the price per sample task order” and the sample task orders referenced for evaluation purposes in paragraph D (DLCC evaluation)?

Any reference to 'sample task orders' is incorrect.  No sample task orders will be provided.  The RFP will be amended accordingly.
16.  Reference: L.4.2, paragraph (2)  “The Offeror shall provide labor rate costs for each labor category they propose to be used throughout the life of the contract. These labor rate costs will be included in the contract and be the basis for negotiation of the follow on task orders.” 

Question. Upon contract award, will the government issue task orders for each of the listed SMF’s? 

17.  Reference: L.2.5 Phase-in.   “phase-in from the current contract to full assumption of CORENet responsibility.  Full phase-in should be accomplished in no more than 3 months.”  

Question:  Is Phase-in to be priced separately? If the answer is yes, are you looking for phase-in to be priced on a T&M basis, and post phase-in as the FFP CLINS?   

The government is not requiring the Offeror to price Phase-in separately.  FPP applies to the Phase-in.
18.  Reference: Page 10 of 85, Section B CORENet Acquisition Strategy.  “Phase 1 will maintain the current scope of services; include the Joint Task Force-Global Network Operations (JTF-GNO) network supporting about 450 additional users at the DISA Headquarters compound…”

Question: What level of support or composite of services will be provided to/for the JTF-GNO?

The JTF-GNO administrative network will be fully integrated with the CORENet.  The JTF-GNO personnel will become users of the CORENet, and will be provided the set of services called for in the RFP.  
19.  Reference: CORENet Technical Architecture, Page 9 of 12, Section 6.2.  “An automated VoIP call management system, IP Express, has been implemented for the Help Desk”

Question: Is this system handling calls for assistance from the user community, or is it for internal use only within the help desk?  Is this system providing call statistics?  Is this system integrated with the Remedy System?

This system is handling calls for assistance from the user community.  It is not integrated with other DISA Remedy or DoD trouble management systems.
20.  Reference: CORENet Technical Architecture, Page 9 of 12, Section 6.2.  “In addition, RightAnswers’ web-based user self-service application, Knowledgebase, has been deployed on the CORENet intranet.”

Question: Is this Knowledgebase (KB) currently integrated with the Remedy system or must a manual process occur to update ticket and user information? If the process is manual, what is the process?

Tickets submitted through KB are fed into the existing trouble ticket system. At this time, information updating to KB is a manual process performed by Call Center perssonel.
21.  Reference: CORENet DISC Organizations Functions and Missions, Page 1 of 10, Section 1- Item 2.  “Facilitate data exchange between ITAMS and DPAS”

Question: How is data exchange currently performed? If it is a manual process, what is that process?

This is a proposed future function.  ITAMS is the Altiris asset management system; it is planned to have an automated or semi-automated transfer of data between the two systems. 
22.  Reference: Attachment J5, CORENet DISC Organizations Functions and Missions, Page 1 of 10, Section 2- Item 1.  “Spillages”

Question: Can you please define “spillages”. This term commonly refers to, at times, unauthorized distribution of classified material. Is the placement of this item with the Budget Management Team for cost reimbursement? 

This term does refer to unauthorized distribution of classified material, and is placed within the Budget Management Team for cost reimbursement.
23.  Reference:  Attachment J11 (with regard to Attachment J5 Page 3 of 10, Section 1- Item 1.A.1-3).  

Question:  Is the RITS process completely automated”

The process is not completely automated, requiring manual routing and updating actions. 

24.  Reference:  Attachment J11 (with regard to Attachment J5 Page 3 of 10, Section 1- Item 1.A.1-3).  

 “Develop, schedule and monitor project progress through the SCR, DISANet Technical Staff Notification (DTSN) and DISANet Rollout Notification (DRN).”

Question: Is the DRN an automated process? Is the overall Requirements process an automated work flow?
Neither the overall Requirements process nor DRN process is a fully automated work flow at this time.  See Appendix 10, “Enterprise Management Infobase” for more information on the change notice process.
25.  Reference:  Attachment J5, CORENet DISC Organizations Functions and Missions, 

Page 3 of 10, Section 2- Item b. 2) and 3).  “System Change Requests”

Question: What is the System Change Request Process? Is it an automated process?

The System Change Request (SCR) process as used here refers to the process of creating SCRs, DTSNs and DRNs as a means of documenting up-coming changes on the CORENet; it is not fully automated.   See Appendix 10, “Enterprise Management Infobase” for more information on the change notice process.
26.  Reference:  Attachment J5, CORENet DISC Organizations Functions and Missions, 

Page 3 of 10, Section 2- Item b. 2) and 3).  “DISANet Technical Staff Notifications (DTSNs)”

Question: Is the DTSN an automated process? To what level is it integrated with the other tools, systems and processes described in the provided documentation?

Per Questions #24 and 25, see Appendix 10, “Enterprise Management Infobase” for more information on the change notice process.  
27.  Reference:  Attachment J5, CORENet DISC Organizations Functions and Missions, Page 5 of 10, under “Functions: c.”  “Monitors DCC controlled network resources to ensure all components operate within approved standards of performance, reliability, and availability”  

Question: What tools are/is the DCC using to ensure approved standards operations, reliability and availability?  Are the tools used by the DCC automated and integrated into a common architecture?
CORENet system management and monitoring tools are identified in the “DISANet System Management Tools” worksheet of Appendix J3, “Software Inventory”.   With the exceptions of  “Dell Client Manager”, “REM/Retina” and “Hercules”, the DCC employs the tools listed under “Other Management Software.  Several tools, to include Sitescope, HP Openview, and Perfmon, are integrated with the NetCool Suite, and it is planned to integrate all tools capable of doing so with NetCool.
28.  Reference:  Attachment J9, DISANet Configuration Board Guidelines, Page 4 of 10, Section 2.1- Second to last bullet item, Page 4 of 10, Section 2.2-  “Administer configuration management tools, including new releases, setting project defaults, and overseeing integrity of the project files”; and “CPM will use existing configuration management tools to document….”

Questions: Which tool(s) is/are DISA currently using to administer, monitor and verify the integrity of the project files?  What is the application foundation of the DISANet Enterprise Management Information System (DEMI) and is this system integrated with any other systems within DISA?

a) At present, the DISC is managing projects using Microsoft Project; data entry is a manual process.  Integrity of project files is maintained through simple file access permissions.  

b) DEMI is an SQL-based database; at present it is not integrated with any other DISC or DISA systems.

29.  Reference:  Attachment J9, DISANet Configuration Board Guidelines, Page 4 of 10, Section 2.1- Last bullet item.  “Administer the DISANet Asset Management Database”

Question: What application is currently being used as the DISANet Asset Management Database? 

There is at present no unified asset management system for the CORENet infrastructure.  The DISC performs limited asset management using the DISANet Enterprise Management Information System (DEMI) (see Appendix J10).  This provides asset management for CORENet server and network infrastructure devices.  Organizations in the DISA Directorate that perform software and centralized DISA client (PC and laptop) procurement and licensing/warranty maintenance for the CORENet in support of the DISC perform asset management for these systems.  Inventory management for the CORENet infrastructure is provided through Altiris tools.  Planning is now underway to integrate these multiple efforts into a true CORENet asset management system using the Altiris asset management tool suite.  The proposed architecture will be posted as an attachment to the RFP.  
30.  Reference:  DISANet Configuration Board Guidelines, Page 5 of 10, Section 2.3- “…to the System Change Requests (triggers) identified in section 1.1.1.1, as related to the DISANet….”

Question: Where is section 1.1.1.1 located? It does not appear to be located in this attachment.

This and several other section references are in error; a corrected version of this document will be posted to FedBizOpps.  
31.  Reference:  DISANet Configuration Board Guidelines, Page 7 of 10, Section 3.1.3- DISANet Database Update.  “Updates to the DISANet Asset Management Database (DISANet AMD)…”

Questions: What application is currently being used as the DISANet AMD?  Is the DISANet AMD integrated with any other systems or is the update process a manual process. If the process is manual, what is that process?

See Question #29.
32.  Reference:  Attachment J13, DISANet Asset Management Plan, Page 3 of 11, Section 2.2- Item 5.  “Software inventory records and reports shall be available in accordance with Altiris permissions”

Questions: What are these Altiris permissions?   If the Altiris permissions refers to Table 1 (page 5 of 11), are these fields searchable fields modifiable?

33.  Reference: Attachment J10, DEMI and DISANet Notice Process. 

 Questions:  What is the time frame between the user creation of an SCR in DEMI and the completion of the technical staff review?   What is the Configuration Management staff review time frame / process?   What is the change notification time frame currently, prior to changes?

34.  Reference:  M.2.3 Past Performance color ratings.

Comment:  The requirements seem overly complex and cannot account for all possible combinations. This could result in unintended unbalances in the evaluation. For example, under the current wording a combination of five citations that includes two low rated submissions could be blue. There are a total of 80 possible combinations (5 past performance citations x 4 relevancy ratings x 4 performance quality ratings) must be accounted for. We recommend that the criteria in the first three columns be used for Past performance as well to eliminate potential acquisition risk post award.

35.  Reference:  Sections L and M.  

Section L allows for the use of Past Performance from a critical partner.  Accordingly, recommend that M2.3, Blue, Past Performance column, item b. be changed to read: “b. A majority of the excellent-rated efforts identified in item a. above are performed by the Offeror or critical partner as a prime, and at least one must be highly a relevant PBA effort.” 

36.  Reference:  Sections L and M.  

Section L states that the Government will evaluate past performance by the Offeror or a critical partner. In many places Section M only addresses the Offeror. For example M.3.3.3 begins, "The Government establishes the recency of the Offeror's Past Performance...". In Section M for Past Performance, when it is used generically and not differentiated from subcontractors, does the term "Offeror" include critical partners?
Yes, if the term “Offeror” is used generically, it includes critical partners.
37.  M.3.2.2 Subfactor 2 – Services Provisioning Management, Element 2 - Staffing Approach  indicates that the Offeror must submit a Compensation Plan for Employees.  Does this count towards the page limitation set forth in L.6.2.2?

38.  In Attachment J.17, Item 15, both “Yes” and “No” are checked.  Please clarify.

This item should have been checked “No” only, and will be corrected.
39.  Is it acceptable to send a compensation plan that is specifically germane to this RFP rather than company-wide?
